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PER CURI AM *

Def endant Martin Anthony Castellon pleaded guilty to a
four-count drug indictnment, and the district court sentenced
him to concurrent sentences of 46 nonths in prison and four
years of supervised release on each count. Castell on now
appeal s his sentence, claimng that the district court should

not have considered a prior Texas deferred adjudication

"Pursuant to 5th CGr. R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opinion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5th Gr. R 47.5.4.
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proceeding for the purpose of enhancing his sentence. e

AFFlI RM

Oh COctober 5, 2005, a federal grand jury indicted
Castellon and a co-defendant on four counts: (1) conspiracy
to inmport marijuana, in violation of 21 U S.C. 88 963, 952(a),
and 960(a)(1); (2) inportation of marijuana, in violation of
21 U.S.C. 88 952(a) and 960(a)(1); (3) conspiracy to possess
wth the intent to distribute marijuana, in violation of 21
U S.C 88 846 and 841(a)(1); and (4) possession with the intent
todistribute marijuana, inviolationof 21 U S.C. § 841(a)(1).
The governnent also filed a bill of information, pursuant to
21 U.S.C. §8 851, notifying Castellon that it intended to seek
enhanced puni shnent based on a prior Texas state conviction for
possession of nore than 5, but less than 50, pounds of
marijuana i n Decenber 2004.

Castell on objected to the notice of enhanced puni shnent.

He asserted that, because the Texas prosecutionresulted inthe

121 U S C 8§ 851 provides, in pertinent part: “No person who
stands convicted of an offense under this part shall be sentenced
to i ncreased puni shnment by reason of one or nore prior convictions,
unl ess before trial, or before entry of a plea of quilty, the
United States attorney files an information with the court (and
serves a copy of such information on the person or counsel for the
person) stating in witing the previous convictions to be relied
upon. . . .” 21 U.S.C § 851(a)(1).
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I nposition of deferred adjudication probation, it was not a
“final” conviction and could not be used to enhance his
sentence under the enhancenent provisions of 21 US C 8§
841(b). Seeid. 8§ 841(b)(1) (D) (providi ng enhanced puni shnents
for convictions involving |less than 50 kil ograns of nmarijuana
If the offense occurs “after a prior conviction for a felony
drug of fense has becone final”). After a hearing, the district
court overruled Castellon’s objection.

On January 11, 2006, Castellon pleaded guilty, wthout a
pl ea agreenent, to all four counts of the indictnent. Before
Castellon was sentenced, the probation officer prepared a
presentence investigation report. In its calculation of the
rel evant advi sory sentenci ng gui deli nes range, the presentence
I nvestigation report attributed a total of three crimnal
history points to Castellon based on the Texas deferred
adj udi cati on conviction (one point for the sentenceitself, and
two points because the current offense was commtted while
Castellon was on probation for the Texas conviction).
Castellon objected to the presentence investigation report’s
crimnal history calculation, again asserting that the Texas
deferred adjudication was not a “final” conviction and could

not therefore be consi dered. The district court overrul ed



Castellon’ s objection and sentenced himto 46 nonths in prison
on each count, the sentences to be served concurrently. The
district court also inposed concurrent four-year terns of
supervi sed rel ease on each count. The sentence inposed by the
district court was at the bottom of the advisory guidelines
range cal cul ated by the presentence investigation report.

.

As an initial matter, it is not altogether clear whether
Castellon appeals only the use of his Texas conviction as a
trigger to the enhanced penalties available under 21 U S. C 8§
841(b)(1)(D),? or whether he al so appeal s the use of the Texas
conviction in calculating his crimnal history category under
the advi sory sentencing guidelines. The argunent heading in

Castellon’s brief suggests the forner, but Castellon appears

2 The presentence investigation report indicated that
Castellon was subject to enhanced penalties not only under 21
US C 8 841(b)(1)(D) (for counts three and four), but also under
21 U.S.C. 8 960(b)(4) (for counts one and two). Although Castellon
does not raise the issue, we note that section 960(b)(4) does not
provide for sentence enhancenent on the basis of a prior felony
drug conviction. This error need not detain us, however.
Castellon’s sentence on counts one and two was |ess than the
maxi mum sent ence permtted under section 960(b)(4). Moreover, the
only effect that the presentence investigation report’s error had
on the cal cul ati on of the appropriate advi sory gui deli nes range for
counts one and two was to increase the mnimumterm of supervised
release to four years. Because Castellon was properly sentenced to
concurrent four-year terns of supervised release on counts three
and four, however, any error did not prejudice Castellon or affect
his substantial rights.



to raise both argunents in the text of his brief. For the sake
of conpl et eness, we consi der both.

Castell on does not dispute that, under binding precedents
of this court, questions about the effect that a prior state
conviction is to be given for federal sentencing purposes,
whet her under the advisory sentencing guidelines or the
sentence enhancenent provisions of 21 US C § 841, is a

question of federal |aw See United States v. Vasquez, 298

F.3d 354, 358 (5th Gr. 2002) (21 U S.C. §8 841); United States

v. Val dez-Val dez, 143 F.3d 196, 200 (5th Cr. 1998) (U S. S G

88 4A1.1 & 2). Nor does Castellon dispute that this court has
previously held that a Texas deferred adjudication can be
considered a prior sentence or prior conviction under both the

sentenci ng guidelines and section 841. See Vasquez, 298 F. 3d

at 358-60; Val dez-Val dez, 143 F.3d at 201-02.

Rat her, Castellon argues only that the district court’s
decision to permt his 2004 Texas deferred adjudication to be
used to enhance his sentence violates the Full Faith and Credit

Act, 28 U.S.C. § 1738,® which provides that the judicial

3ln his brief, Castellon invokes the Full Faith and Credit
Cl ause of the Constitution. See U. S. Const. art IV, 8 1. The Ful
Faith and Credit C ause does not, however, bind federal courts.
See Univ. of Tenn. v. Elliot, 478 U S. 788, 799 (1986); see also
Conn. Bank of Commerce v. Republic of Congo, 309 F. 3d 240, 248 (5th

5



proceedi ngs of other states “shall have the sane full faith and
credit within every court within the United States . . . as
they have by law or usage in the courts of such State,
Territory or Possession fromwhich they are taken.”

Al though this court does not appear to have previously
addressed Castellon’s full faith and credit argunent, the
argunent is neritless. The Full Faith and Credit Act obligates
federal courts to give effect to the judgnents of state courts,
but the principles that underlie the Full Faith and Credit Act
are sinply not inplicated when a federal court endeavors to
determ ne how a particular state crimnal proceeding is to be
treated, as a matter of federal law, for the purpose of
sentencing the defendant for a distinct and unrel ated federal
crinme. A nunber of other circuits have reached this sane
conclusion, and we are aware of no decisions to the contrary.

See United States v. Jones, 415 F.3d 256, 265 (2d Cr. 2005)

(“[T]he principles of federalism and comty enbodied in the
full faith and credit statute are not endangered when a

sentencing court, not questioning the propriety of the state’s

Cr. 2002) (stating that Full Faith and Credit Act “extends to the
federal courts the requirenents of the Full Faith and Credit C ause
of the Constitution, which applies of its own force only to state
courts”).



determnation in any way, interprets how to apply New York’s
yout hful offender adjudications to a Quidelines analysis.”)

(internal citation and quotation marks omtted); United States

v. Guthrie, 931 F.2d 564, 571 (9th Gr. 1991) (“[D octrines

such as Full Faith and Credit, . . . and related jurisdictional
principles, are inapplicable . . . where the issue is the role
of prior state convictions in a federal sentencing schene.”);

United States v. Carter, 186 F. App’' x 844, 847 (10th G r. 2006)

(unpublished) (“It does not accord a state judgnent |ess than
full faith and credit for a federal court to determne its
effect on a subsequent federal sentence under federal law”).
Accordingly, we reject Castellon’ s argunent that the Full Faith
and Credit Act prohibited the district court from considering
his Texas deferred adjudi cation for sentencing purposes.
CONCLUSI ON

For the reasons stated above, we AFFIRM Castellon’s

sent ence.

AFFI RVED.



